
 

Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, May 30, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Chris Mann, Division 1 
Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   

III. Staff Report 

IV. Operational Updates 

A. Overview of the Dewatering Equipment Pilot Testing Study at the Wochholz Regional 
Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-068 - Page 5 of 138] 

V. Capital Improvement Project Updates 

A. Status Report on the Construction of the Site Improvements for the Recycled Water 
Booster Station 12.4.0 in Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-069 - Page 7 of 138] 

B. Status Report on the Construction of Replacement Pipelines on Date Avenue, Dodd 
Street, Panorama Drive, Lennox Street, Verona Street, Calvin Street, and Vista Lane - 
Yucaipa [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-070 - Page 9 of 138] 

VI. Policy Issues 

A. Overview of a Draft Resolution Setting the Methodology for Calculating a Facility Capacity 
Charge Component Related to the Purchase of Supplemental Water from the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071 - Page 11 of 138] 

B. Discussion Regarding Potential On-Bill Financing for Recycled Water Connection 
Improvements to Ridgeview Elementary School [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-072 - 
Page 41 of 138] 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 1 of 138

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

VII. Administrative Issues 

A. Review of the Memorandum of Agreement to form a Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
for the San Timoteo Subbasin [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073 - Page 44 of 138] 

B. Review of the Memorandum of Agreement to form a Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
for the Yucaipa Subbasin [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074 - Page 58 of 138] 

C. Review of Draft Resolution No. 2017-xx Establishing the Appropriation Limit for Fiscal 
Year 2017-18 [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075 - Page 80 of 138] 

D. Review of Bad Debt Summary for Calendar Year 2015 [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-
076 - Page 98 of 138] 

E. Overview of the Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year 2018 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 17-077 - Page 99 of 138] 

F. Review of Proposed Insurance Policy for Fiscal Year 2018 [Workshop Memorandum No. 
17-078 - Page 103 of 138] 

G. Review of a Proposal for the 2016-2017 Habitat Monitoring Program Activities, 
Groundwater and Surface Water Data Assistance, and Annual Report [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 17-079 - Page 122 of 138] 

VIII. Director Comments 

IX. Closed Session 

A. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 0321-261-15 and 0321-261-17 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Dawn Campbell  
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 0301-211-020 and 0301-201-030 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Mesa Verde Ventures LLC c/o Betek Corporation 
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

C. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 301-201-20, 27 and 28 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Abraham and Nabil Issa  
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

D. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Number: 321-081-09 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Michael Moran  
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

X. Adjournment  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 2 of 138



 

Staff Report 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 3 of 138



 

 

Operational Updates 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 4 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-068 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Kevin King, Operations Manager 

Subject: Overview of the Dewatering Equipment Pilot Testing Study at the Wochholz 
Regional Water Recycling Facility 

 
The Wochholz Regional Water 
Recycling Facility uses belt filters to 
remove liquids from the biosolids 
collected throughout the sewer 
treatment process.  The belt filter 
technology has been in use at the 
sewer treatment plant for over twenty 
years and have proven to be a simple 
and reliable technology that has been 
easy to maintain with a long life.  As this 
equipment has surpassed its useful life, 
the District staff has noticed signs of 
metal fatigue and stress cracks in the 
equipment.  Therefore, we have started 
to process to evaluate other available 
technology to plan for the replacement 
of the existing belt presses. 
 
The District staff has tested alternative 
dewatering equipment to further reduce maintenance, energy and hauling costs.  Pilot testing of 
potential equipment provided an opportunity to validate the equipment performance and provide 
the operations staff members with first-hand knowledge about the overall operation and 
maintenance of the equipment. 
 
This presentation outlines the methodology and process used for determining the most cost 
effective method for replacing the existing equipment. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 5 of 138



 

 

Capital Improvement Projects 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 6 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-069 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Kathryn Hallberg, Management Analyst 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of the Site Improvements for the Recycled 
Water Booster Station 12.4.0 in Calimesa 

 
On January 31, 2017, the Board of Directors awarded the contract to TSR Construction and 
Inspection for the construction of the site improvements at RWB- 12.4 Recycled Booster Station 
at the intersection of Myrtlewood Drive and California Street in Calimesa 
 
The project includes the construction of 315± linear feet of 8-foot 8-inch to 12-foot high masonry 
walls with masonry pillars, 200± linear feet of 8-foot high steel tubular fencing with access gates, 
site grading and furnishing, Class 2 base material, and site landscaping.  
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 7 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-069  Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 8 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-070 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of Replacement Pipelines on Date Avenue, 
Dodd Street, Panorama Drive, Lennox Street, Verona Street, Calvin Street, and 
Vista Lane - Yucaipa 

 
On April 4, 2017, the Board of Directors awarded a construction project to Borden Excavating for 
the construction of replacement pipelines on Date Avenue, Dodd Street, Panorama Drive, Lennox 
Street, Verona Street, Calvin Street, and Vista Lane Replacement Pipelines [Director 
Memorandum No.  17-032].  The project includes the construction of approximately 4,600+ linear 
feet of 8-inch mortar lined ductile iron pipe, including various laterals, valves and appurtenances, 
and removal and replacement of pavement.  
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the current construction activities. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 9 of 138



 

 

Policy Issues 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 10 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-071 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Overview of a Draft Resolution Setting the Methodology for Calculating a Facility 
Capacity Charge Component Related to the Purchase of Supplemental Water from 
the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

 
On July 27, 2015, the Board of Directors of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (“SGPWA”) 
adopted Resolution No. 2015-05 adopting facility capacity fees for new infrastructure and 
additional water resources (see page 3 of 30).  The adoption of this resolution was deemed 
necessary byt the SGPWA to “…meet future increasing demands for SGPWA supplemental water 
to the SGPWA service area which will require additional water facilities to be constructed to 
distribute water and to acquire additional water rights to meet future increasing demands.” 
 
At the regular meeting of the City of Calimesa on May 2, 2016, the Calimesa council members 
reviewed a Cooperative Agreement for the Collection of Facility Capacity Fees by and Between 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and [City] (see page 6 of 30).  Following a discussion about 
the draft cooperative agreement with the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, the Calimesa council 
members voted to "defer action and direct staff to continue working with all parties regarding a 
regional resolution on water supply". 
 
In summer 2016, a collaborative effort was put forth to draft an agreement that expressly achieved 
the goals of municipal agencies represented by:  

• Bonnie Johnson, City Manager, City of Calimesa;  

• Jeff Davis, General Manager, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency; and  

• Joseph Zoba, General Manager, Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
After several months of discussions and negotiations, the group of managers developed the latest 
version of the Water Rights, Water Supply, and Facility Capacity Fee Collection Agreement (see 
page 13 of 30).  This agreement sets forth the process, conditions, and requirements needed to 
ensure development fees paid to the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency result in water rights 
dedicated to Yucaipa Valley Water District prior to the City of Calimesa issues buiding permits.   

 

San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency

•Receipt of Capacity Fees from property 
owners for new development

Yucaipa Valley Water District

•Purchase of permanent secured water 
rights  dedicated by SGPWA to YVWD 
for new development

City of Calimesa

•Issuance of building permits based on 
secured and dedicated water supply to 
YVWD for new development

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 11 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 2 of 30 

On March 6, 2017, the Board of Directors of the San Gorognio Pass Water Agency voted 6-0 to 
not proceed any further with the draft cooperative agreement.  Instead, the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency created an ad hoc group of their elected officials to develop an agreement tht would 
be presented to the elected officials of the Yucaipa Valley Water District at some future date. 
 
On May 9, 2017, the District received a draft agreement from the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency related to the collection of a Facility Capacity Fee (see page 20 of 30).  The District staff 
is currenty reviewing this document with a recommendation to the Board of Directors. 
 
The District staff remains cautiously optimistic that a solution to the lack of supplemental water 
for the region will ultimately be achieved by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.  While the 
board members, staff, and legal counsel from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency continue to 
work on their version of a cooperative agreement, the District should establish a reasonable 
methodology and adopt a fee structure that begins to collect funds for the purchase of 
supplemental water in the form of permanent water rights. 
 
At the board workshop on April 25, 2017, the District staff illustrated a sample methodology to 
calculate the cost of a permanent supplemental water supplies using the nexus report prepared 
by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.  Based on the proposed methodology, the District staff 
drafted a proposed resolution to adopt the methodology and implement a new facility capacity fee 
component for new homes in the Calimesa portion of our service area (see page 24 of 30). 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 12 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 3 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 13 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 4 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 14 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 5 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 15 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 6 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 16 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 7 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 17 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 8 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 18 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 9 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 19 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 10 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 20 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 11 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 21 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 12 of 30 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 22 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 13 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 23 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 14 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 24 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 15 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 25 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 16 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 26 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 17 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 27 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 18 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 28 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 19 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 29 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 20 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 30 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 21 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 31 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 22 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 32 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 23 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 33 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 24 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 34 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 25 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 35 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 26 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 36 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 27 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 37 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 28 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 38 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 29 of 30 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 39 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-071  Page 30 of 30 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 40 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-072 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding Potential On-Bill Financing for Recycled Water Connection 
Improvements to Ridgeview Elementary School 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District strives to develop and advance innovative and effective public 
policies to improve the overall management of our water resources.   
 
The District staff has been working together with the staff at the Yucaipa Calimesa Joint Unified 
School District to convert the play fields at Ridgeview Elementary School from drinking water to 
recycled water.  While recycled water is available for the school in Sunnyside Drive, the elevation 
of the play fields will require the installation of an irrigation pump to provide sufficient pressure to 
allow the existing sprinkler system to function properly. 
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss the establishment of a pilot program to utilize on-
bill financing as a method to accommodate the installation of a recycled water pump at this site.  
Using on-bill financing, the water district will pay for the installation of the irrigation pump and the 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 41 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-072  Page 2 of 2 

school district would reimburse the water district from the differential between drinking water rates 
and recycled water rates over time.   
 
If the Board of Directors decided to implement this program, the on-bill financing program would 
only be available to local governments such as the Yucaipa-Calimesa Unified School District, City 
of Yucaipa and the City of Calimesa at a fixed interest rate with a provision to discontinue irrigation 
water service for non-payment.  By limiting the availability of this program to local government 
agencies, the District significantly reduces the risk of non-payment and the risks associated with 
the transfer of property ownership. 
 
Additionally, the District staff would propose participating in this project with a maximum 
contribution of $25,000 towards contract administration, construction management, and 
inspection services. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 42 of 138



 

 

Administrative Issues 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 43 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-073 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 

Subject: Review of the Memorandum of Agreement to form a Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency for the San Timoteo Subbasin 

 
On Sept. 16, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law a three-bill legislative package, known 
as the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (the “Act”).  The Act provides a 
framework for sustainable management of groundwater supplies by local authorities, with a limited 
role for state intervention only if necessary to protect the resource.  The Act protects existing 
surface water and groundwater rights and requires the formation of local groundwater 
sustainability agencies (GSAs) that must assess conditions in their local water basins and adopt 
locally-based management plans.   
 
The District has been actively involved in the development of the Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency for the San Timoteo Sub-Basin.  Additional agencies involved within the basin are 
Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District, the City of Redlands, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.  
Eastern Municipal Water District is represented as a stakeholder to the GSA and will be forming 
a separate GSA in their service area that covers the lower San Timoteo Basin. 
 
In order to become a Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the San Timoteo Sub-basin, each 
party of the Agreement must conduct a public hearing and obtain Board and/or Council approval.  
The attached Memorandum of Agreement has been scheduled for a public hearing at the June 6, 
2017 board meeting.  All documents required for the GSA must be submitted to the Department 
of Water Resources by June 30, 2017.  
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 44 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 2 of 14 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT TO FORM A GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY 
AGENCY FOR PART OF THE UNADJUDICATED PORTION OF THE 
SAN TIMOTEO SUBBASIN AND TO COORDINATE WITH OTHER 

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCIES 
 
 
This 2017 Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is entered into by and among Beaumont Cherry 
Valley Water District (BCVWD), Yucaipa Valley Water District (YVWD), City of Redlands 
(Redlands), and San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA), which may be referred to herein 
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

 
Pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and as further set forth 
herein, the purposes of this MOA are to form a Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for part 
of the unadjudicated portion of the San Timoteo Subbasin (Basin), the members of which GSA 
shall be BCVWD, YVWD, Redlands, and SGPWA (herein, the ST-GSA), and to establish that the 
ST-GSA will coordinate with the Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) in its formation of a 
separate GSA for another part of the unadjudicated portion of the Basin within EMWD’s service 
area. 

 
 

Recitals 
 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law Senate Bills 1168 
and 1319, and Assembly Bill 1739, collectively known as the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA), codified in certain provisions of the California Government Code, 
commencing with Section 65350.5, and in certain provisions of the California Water Code, 
including but not limited to, Sections 5200 et seq. and 10720 et seq.; and 

 
WHEREAS, SGMA went into effect on January 1, 2015, and thereafter various clarifying 
amendments to SGMA were signed into law in 2015, including Senate Bills 13 and 226, and 
Assembly Bills 617 and 939; and 

 
WHEREAS, the San Timoteo Subbasin (Basin), as further depicted in Exhibit A to this MOA, is 
identified by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Bulletin 118 as Subbasin No. 
8-02.08 of the Upper Santa Ana Valley Groundwater Basin, and is designated by DWR as medium 
priority, and therefore, except as provided by SGMA, the Basin is subject to the requirements of 
SGMA; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties recognize and agree that a portion of the Basin (herein, the Adjudicated 
Area) is subject to the Beaumont Basin adjudication and Judgment in the case referred to as San 
Timoteo Watershed Management Authority v. City of Banning, et al., Riverside County Superior 
Court Case No. RIC 389197, and that pursuant to SGMA Section 10720.8(a)(1), said portion of 
the Basin generally is not subject to the requirements of SGMA and will not be managed by the 
ST-GSA; and 

 
WHEREAS, SGMA Section 10720.7 requires the Basin, as a medium priority basin which is not 
designated by DWR as being subject to critical conditions of overdraft, to be managed by a 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) or coordinated GSPs by January 31, 2022; and 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 45 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 3 of 14 

WHEREAS, SGMA Section 10727(b) authorizes (1) a single GSP covering the entire Basin 
developed and implemented by one GSA, (2) a single GSP covering the entire Basin developed 
and implemented by multiple GSAs, or (3) multiple GSPs developed and implemented by multiple 
GSAs and coordinated pursuant to a single coordination agreement that covers the entire Basin; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, SGMA Section 10735.2 requires the formation of a GSA or multiple GSAs for the 
Basin by June 30, 2017; and 

 
WHEREAS, SGMA Section 10723.6(a) authorizes a combination of local agencies to form a GSA 
pursuant to a joint powers agreement, a memorandum of agreement, or other legal agreement; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, BCVWD, YVWD, Redlands, and SGPWA are local agencies as defined by SGMA, 
wherein each agency overlies at least a portion of the Basin and each has respective water 
supply, water management, and/or land use responsibilities within the Basin, and thus each is 
authorized by SGMA to become part of the ST-GSA; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the terms of this MOA, and in furtherance of the shared intent of 
the Parties to maximize funding opportunities for the Basin and avoid potential intervention in the 
Basin by the State Water Resources Control Board, the Parties agree that the ST-GSA formed 
by this MOA will cover the entire Basin except the Adjudicated Area of the Basin and that portion 
of the Basin that lies within the service area of EMWD, for which EMWD intends to form a separate 
GSA as further described below; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties mutually desire and intend to work with local stakeholders and interested 
entities in the Basin that are not Parties to this MOA, including but not limited to EMWD, the City 
of Beaumont (Beaumont), the City of Calimesa (Calimesa), the County of Riverside Planning 
Department, the County of San Bernardino Flood Control District, the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster, overlying landowners, and others to 
carry out the policy, purposes, and requirements of SGMA in the Basin. 

 
 

Agreement 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, terms, conditions, and covenants 
contained herein, it is mutually understood and agreed as follows: 

 
I. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Recitals stated above are incorporated herein by 

reference. 
 
II. Purposes.  The purposes of this MOA are to form the ST-GSA for part of the 

unadjudicated portion of the Basin as specified herein pursuant to applicable provisions 
and requirements of SGMA, including but not limited to SGMA Sections 10723 and 
10723.6, and to establish that the ST-GSA will coordinate with EMWD in its formation of 
a separate GSA for another part of the unadjudicated portion of the Basin within EMWD’s 
service area. 
 

III. Approval of MOA and Formation of the ST-GSA.  Approval of this MOA and formation 
of the ST-GSA shall be accomplished by BCVWD, YVWD, Redlands, and SGPWA each 
holding its own noticed public hearing pursuant to SGMA Section 10723(b) and 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 46 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 4 of 14 

Government Code Section 6066 and at such hearing will consider approval of a Resolution 
by its governing board to enter this MOA and jointly form the ST-GSA as specified in this 
MOA.  Upon the respective approvals of such Resolutions and this MOA by BCVWD, 
YVWD, Redlands, and SGPWA, there shall be established the ST-GSA as provided 
herein. 

 
IV. Definitions.  The following terms, whether used in the singular or plural, and when used 

with initial capitalization, shall have the meanings specified herein.  The Parties agree that 
any definitions set forth herein are intended to be consistent with SGMA, and in the event 
of any discrepancy between a defined term in this MOA and a defined term in SGMA, the 
terms of SGMA shall control. 
 
A. “Adjudicated Area” refers to that portion of the Basin that is subject to the 

Beaumont Basin adjudication and Judgment in the case referred to as San 
Timoteo Watershed Management Authority v. City of Banning, et al., Riverside 
County Superior Court Case No. RIC 389197, as further depicted in Exhibit A to 
this MOA. 
 

B. “Basin” refers to the San Timoteo Subbasin, designated by the California 
Department of Water Resources Bulletin 118 as Subbasin No. 8-02.08, as further 
specified, and depicted in Exhibit A to this MOA. 

 
C. “BCVWD” means the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District. 

 
D. “DWR” means the California Department of Water Resources. 
 
E. “EMWD” means the Eastern Municipal Water District. 

 
F. “GSA” means Groundwater Sustainability Agency, as defined by SGMA. 
 
G. “GSP” means Groundwater Sustainability Plan, as defined by SGMA. 

 
H. “Memorandum of Agreement” or “MOA” refers to this Memorandum of Agreement. 

 
I. “Party” or “Parties” refers individually or collectively to Beaumont Cherry Valley 

Water District, Yucaipa Valley Water District, City of Redlands, and San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency, as signatories to this MOA. 

 
J. “Redlands” means the City of Redlands. 
 
K. “SGMA” refers to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. 
 
L. “SGPWA” means the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 
 
M. “ST-GSA” refers to the San Timoteo Subbasin GSA formed under this MOA, the 

members of which GSA are BCVWD, YVWD, Redlands, and SGPWA. 
 
N. “YVWD” means the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 

 
V. Boundaries of ST-GSA.  The boundaries of the ST-GSA, as further depicted in Exhibit 

B to this MOA, shall be the entire Basin except the Adjudicated Area of the Basin as further 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 47 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 5 of 14 

specified in this MOA and that portion of the Basin that lies within the service area of 
EMWD, wherein EMWD intends to form a separate GSA for that portion of the Basin in 
accordance with SGMA and without overlapping the boundaries of the ST-GSA as 
provided in this MOA.  The Parties understand and agree that pursuant to SGMA Section 
10720.8, the Adjudicated Area of the Basin generally is not subject to the requirements of 
SGMA and will not be managed by the ST-GSA. 
 

VI. Coordination and Cooperation 
 
A. Continued Cooperation.  The Parties to this MOA will continue to meet, confer, 

coordinate, and collaborate to discuss and develop technical, managerial, 
financial, and other criteria and procedures for the preparation, governance, and 
implementation of a GSP or coordinated GSPs in the Basin and to carry out the 
policy, purposes, and requirements of SGMA in the Basin. 

 
B. Points of Contact.  Each Party shall designate a principal contact person for that 

Party, who may be changed from time to time at the sole discretion of the 
designating Party.  The principal contact person for each Party shall be responsible 
for coordinating with the principal contact persons for the other Parties in 
scheduling meetings and other activities under this MOA. 

 
C. Management Areas.  The Parties acknowledge that SGMA, and provisions of the 

SGMA regulations promulgated by DWR, including but not limited to Section 
354.20 (23 C.C.R. § 354.20), authorize the establishment of management areas 
for the development and implementation of sustainable groundwater management 
within the Basin, and accordingly the Parties acknowledge and agree that the 
establishment of management areas within the Basin is a governance alternative 
that the Parties may explore. 

 
VII. Roles and Responsibilities 

 
A. The Parties agree to jointly establish their roles and responsibilities for 

implementing a GSP or coordinated GSPs for the Basin in accordance with SGMA. 
 
B. The Parties agree to work in good faith and coordinate all activities to carry out the 

purposes of this MOA in implementing the policy, purposes, and requirements of 
SGMA in the Basin and particularly within the boundaries of the ST-GSA. 

 
C. BCVWD, YVWD, Redlands, and SGPWA, as members of the ST-GSA, shall 

coordinate with each other to cause all applicable noticing and submission of 
required information to DWR regarding formation of the ST-GSA. 
 

D. As provided in this MOA, the Parties will continue to meet, confer, coordinate, and 
collaborate to discuss and develop governance, management, technical, financial, 
and other matters, including respective roles and responsibilities for activities such 
as, but not limited to, the following: modeling; metering; monitoring; hiring 
consultants; developing and maintaining list of interested persons under SGMA 
Section 10723.4; budgeting; and other initial tasks as determined by the Parties. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 48 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 6 of 14 

VIII. Funding and Budgeting.  The Parties shall mutually develop reasonable budgets and 
cost sharing agreements or arrangements for work to be undertaken in carrying out SGMA 
in the Basin. 

 
IX. Stakeholders 

 
A. The Parties agree to work together in ensuring public outreach and involvement of 

the public, other interested stakeholders, and other agencies such as EMWD that 
may be responsible for implementing groundwater sustainability in the Basin 
throughout the SGMA process, including but not limited to all beneficial uses and 
users of groundwater as provided in SGMA Section 10723.2. 

 
B. The Parties acknowledge, agree, and desire that the preparation, adoption, and 

implementation of one or more GSPs for the Basin, and the ongoing process of 
ensuring compliance with the requirements of SGMA in the Basin, will involve close 
coordination and cooperation with stakeholders and other interested parties, 
including but not limited to those identified in this MOA. 

 
X. Term, Termination, and Withdrawal 

 
A. Term.  This MOA shall continue and remain in effect unless and until terminated 

by the unanimous written consent of the Parties, or as otherwise provided in this 
MOA or as authorized by law. 

 
B. Withdrawal.  Any Party may decide, in its sole discretion, to withdraw from this 

MOA by providing ninety (90) days written notice to the other Parties.  A Party that 
withdraws from this MOA shall remain obligated to pay its share of costs and 
expenses incurred or accrued under this MOA and any related cost sharing 
agreement or arrangement up to the date the Party provides its notice of 
withdrawal as provided herein.  Withdrawal by a Party shall not cause or require 
the termination of this MOA or the existence of the ST-GSA with respect to the 
non-withdrawing Parties. 

 
1. In the event of withdrawal by BCVWD, YVWD, Redlands, or SGPWA from 

this MOA and the ST-GSA, the Parties shall meet and confer regarding 
whether the withdrawing Party wishes to seek GSA status for a portion of 
the Basin underlying the service area or management area of the 
withdrawing Party.  The Parties also may meet and confer regarding issues 
such as: (i) whether the ST-GSA, or one or more of the non-withdrawing 
Parties, wishes to retain GSA status over the affected portion of the Basin; 
(ii) whether to enter a co-GSA management or other arrangement with the 
withdrawing Party; and (iii) whether to address the GSA issues in a different 
manner.  Any resolution of such and other GSA issues shall be undertaken 
in a manner that satisfies all requirements of SGMA and DWR, including 
any requirement to file new GSA notices. 

 
XI. Notice Provisions 

 
All notices required by this MOA shall be made in writing and delivered to the respective 
representatives of the Parties at their respective addresses as follows: 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 49 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 7 of 14 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
Attn:  General Manager 
560 Magnolia Avenue 

Beaumont, California 92223 
 

City of Redlands 
Attn:  Municipal Utilities and Engineering Director 

35 Cajon Street 
Redlands, California 92373 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Attn:  General Manager 
12770 Second Street 

Yucaipa, California 92399 
 

San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
Attn:  General Manager 

1210 Beaumont Avenue 
Beaumont, California 92223 

 
Any Party may change the address to which notices are to be given under this MOA by 
providing all other Parties with written notice of such change at least fifteen (15) calendar 
days prior to the effective date of the change.  All notices shall be effective upon receipt 
and shall be deemed received upon confirmed personal service, confirmed courier 
service, or on the fifth (5th) calendar day following deposit of the notice in registered first 
class mail. 
 

XII. General Terms 
 
A. Amendments.  Amendments to this MOA require unanimous written consent of all 

Parties and approval by the Parties’ respective governing bodies. 
 
B. Successors and Assigns.  The terms of this MOA shall be binding upon all 

successors in interest and assigns of each Party; provided, however, that no Party 
shall assign its rights or obligations under this MOA without the signed written 
consent of all other Parties to this MOA. 

 
C. Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this MOA by any Party shall be construed 

as a further or continuing waiver of such provision or any other provision of this 
MOA by the waiving Party or any other Party. 

 
D. Authorized Representatives.  Each person executing this MOA on behalf of a Party 

hereto affirmatively represents that such person has the requisite authority to sign 
this MOA on behalf of the respective Party. 

 
E. Exemption from CEQA.  The Parties recognize and agree that, pursuant to SGMA 

Section 10728.6 and Public Resources Code Section 21065, neither this MOA nor 
the preparation or adoption of a GSP constitute a “project” or approval of a project 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) or the State CEQA 
Guidelines, and therefore this MOA is expressly exempt from CEQA review. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 50 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 8 of 14 

F. Governing Law and Venue.  This MOA shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Any suit, action, or proceeding 
brought under the scope of this MOA shall be brought and maintained to the extent 
allowed by law in the County of Riverside, California. 
 

G. Attorney’s Fees, Costs, and Expenses.  In the event of a dispute among any or all 
of the Parties arising under this MOA, each Party shall assume and be responsible 
for its own attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses. 
 

H. Entire Agreement/Integration.  This MOA constitutes the entire agreement among 
the Parties regarding the specific provisions of this MOA, and the Parties hereto 
have made no agreements, representations or warranties relating to the specific 
provisions of this MOA which are not set forth herein. 

 
I. Construction and Interpretation.  The Parties agree and acknowledge that this 

MOA has been developed through a negotiated process among the Parties, and 
that each Party has had a full and fair opportunity to review the terms of this MOA 
with the advice of its own legal counsel and to revise the terms of this MOA, such 
that each Party constitutes a drafting Party to this MOA.  Consequently, the Parties 
understand and agree that no rule of construction shall be applied to resolve any 
ambiguities against any particular Party as the drafting Party in construing or 
interpreting this MOA. 

 
J. Force Majeure.  No Party shall be liable for the consequences of any 

unforeseeable force majeure event that (1) is beyond its reasonable control, (2) is 
not caused by the fault or negligence of such Party, (3) causes such Party to be 
unable to perform its obligations under this MOA, and (4) cannot be overcome by 
the exercise of due diligence.  In the event of the occurrence of a force majeure 
event, the Party unable to perform shall promptly notify the other Parties in writing 
to the extent practicable.  It shall further pursue its best efforts to resume its 
obligations under this MOA as quickly as possible and shall suspend performance 
only for such period of time as is necessary as a result of the force majeure event. 

 
K. Execution in Counterparts.  This MOA may be executed in counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed an original and all of which when taken together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
L. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This MOA is not intended, and will not be construed, 

to confer a benefit or create any right on a third party or the power or right of any 
third party to bring an action to enforce any of the terms of this MOA. 

 
M. Timing and Captions.  Any provision of this MOA referencing a time, number of 

days, or period for performance shall be measured in calendar days.  The captions 
of the various articles, sections, and paragraphs of this MOA are for convenience 
and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the 
scope, content, terms, or intent of this MOA. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have approved and executed this MOA as of the 
respective dates specified in the adopting Resolution of each Party as provided above in Article 
III of this MOA. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 51 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 9 of 14 

 
[The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.] 

[Signature pages to follow.] 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 52 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 10 of 14 

 
 BEAUMONT CHERRY VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

By:  
 President, Board of Directors 
Attest:  

  

Secretary, Board of Directors  
  
Approved as to form:  

  

Counsel, Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District  
 
 
 
Notices for the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District shall be sent as follows: 
 
Attention: General Manager 
560 Magnolia Avenue 
Beaumont, California 92223 
 
With copies to: 
 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 53 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 11 of 14 

 
 CITY OF REDLANDS 

By:  
 Mayor, City Council 
Attest:  

  

Secretary, City Council  
  
Approved as to form:  

  

Counsel, City of Redlands  
 
 
 
Notices for the City of Redlands shall be sent as follows: 
 
Attention: Municipal Utilities and Engineering Director 
35 Cajon Street 
Redlands, California 92373 
 
With copies to: 
 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 54 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 12 of 14 

 
 SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY 

By:  
 President, Board of Directors 
Attest:  

  

Secretary, Board of Directors  
  
Approved as to form:  

  

Counsel, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency  
 
 
 
Notices for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency shall be sent as follows: 
 
Attention: General Manager 
1210 Beaumont Avenue 
Beaumont, California 92223 
 
With copies to: 
 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 55 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 13 of 14 

 
 YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

By:  
 President, Board of Directors 
Attest:  

  

Secretary, Board of Directors  
  
Approved as to form:  

  

Counsel, Yucaipa Valley Water District  
 
 
 
Notices for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency shall be sent as follows: 
 
Attention: General Manager 
12770 Second Street 
Yucaipa, California 92399 
 
With copies to: 
 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 56 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-073  Page 14 of 14 

Exhibit A 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 57 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-074 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 

Subject: Review of the Memorandum of Agreement to form a Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency for the Yucaipa Subbasin 

 
On Sept. 16, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law a three-bill legislative package, known 
as the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (the “Act”).  The Act provides a 
framework for sustainable management of groundwater supplies by local authorities, with a limited 
role for state intervention only if necessary to protect the resource.  The Act protects existing 
surface water and groundwater rights and requires the formation of local groundwater 
sustainability agencies (GSAs) that must assess conditions in their local water basins and adopt 
locally-based management plans.   
 
The District has been actively involved in the development of the Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency for the Yucaipa Sub-basin.  Additional agencies involved within the basin are South 
Mountain Water Company, Western Heights Water Company, City of Calimesa, City of Redlands, 
City of Yucaipa, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District, and San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency. 
 
In order to become a Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the Yucaipa Sub-basin, each party 
of the Agreement must conduct a public hearing and obtain Board and/or Council approval.  The 
attached Memorandum of Agreement will be subject to approval at the June 6, 2017 board 
meeting. All documents required for the GSA must be submitted to the Department of Water 
Resources by June 30, 2017.  
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 58 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 2 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 59 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 3 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 60 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 4 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 61 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 5 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 62 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 6 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 63 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 7 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 64 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 8 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 65 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 9 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 66 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 10 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 67 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 11 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 68 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 12 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 69 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 13 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 70 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 14 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 71 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 15 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 72 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 16 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 73 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 17 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 74 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 18 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 75 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 19 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 76 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 20 of 22 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 77 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 21 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 78 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-074  Page 22 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 79 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-075 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Review of Draft Resolution No. 2017-xx Establishing the Appropriation Limit for 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 
In 1979, Proposition 4 (the Gann Initiative) was approved adding Article XIII B to the State 
Constitution.  The provisions of this article place limits on the amount of revenue that can be 
appropriated by all entities of government.  This initiative was designed to constrain government 
expenditures by placing an annual limit on revenue and appropriation growth.   
 
In June 1990, Proposition 111 amended Article XIII B, making changes in the base year upon 
which the appropriations limit is based, establishing new cost of living factors and new population 
factors for use by local governments, and increasing appropriations not subject to the limit 
(primarily qualified capital outlay projects).  The financial constraints of Article XIII B apply to State, 
all cities, counties, special districts and all other political subdivisions. 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has completed the computation associated with the 
appropriation limitation for fiscal year 2017-18 ("FY 2018").  Based on the attached calculation, 
the proposed adjustment to the District's appropriation limit includes an increase of 1.98% for the 
increase in non-residential assessed valuation of new construction and a weighted average 
increase of 1.43% for population change.  These percentages have been used to calculate an 
increase in the appropriation limit from $70,350,762 in FY 2017 to $73,987,896 in FY 2018.  This 
represents an overall increase of 5.17% to the appropriation limit.  The District’s annual 
appropriations are well below this limit. 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 80 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 2 of 18 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-XX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATION LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 

 
 
WHEREAS, Article XIII B of the California Constitution provides that the State and each local 
government shall be subject to an appropriations limit, to govern the maximum amount of each 
entity's appropriations subject to limitation, in any fiscal year, as the same are defined in Article 
XIII B; and 

 
WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 7910 provides for the annual establishment by 
local jurisdictions of their appropriations limit for each fiscal year, and further provides that upon 
establishment of such appropriations limit any judicial action or proceeding to attack, review, set 
aside, void, or annul such action by the District must be commenced within forty-five (45) days of 
the effective date of the resolution establishing the appropriations limit; and 

 
WHEREAS, documentation used in determining the appropriations limit has been made available 
to the public for a period of not less than fifteen (15) days prior to Board consideration of this 
resolution. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District does hereby 
resolve, determine and order as follows: 
 
Section 1. That in accordance with Article XIII B of the California Constitution and Section 7910 
of the Government Code of the State of California, the appropriation limit for the Fiscal Year 2017-
18 for the Yucaipa Valley Water District is established as $73,987,896. 
 
Section 2. The adjustment factors for computation of the FY 2017-18 appropriation limitation 
have been identified in the calculation of the appropriation limit. 
 
Section 3. That documentation used in the determination of such appropriation limit has been 
available to the public at least fifteen days prior to this meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
This Resolution is effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of June 2017. 
 
 
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  ATTEST: 

   
Jay Bogh, President Board of Directors  Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 81 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 3 of 18 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 

 
 
 
 

Appropriation Limit for the  
Yucaipa Valley Water District 

 

Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 82 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 4 of 18 

Overview of Appropriation Limit 
 
 

Introduction 
 
In the 1970s soaring property values in California led to dramatic increases in property taxes, 
prompting a tax revolt that resulted in the passage of Proposition 13 in the June 1978 California 
primary.  Proposition 13 reduced local property taxes by 57% and thereby slashed the revenue 
base for local governments and schools.  Over the years the revenue loss has been made up by 
a varying mix of state funds and new revenue from specialized local fees and taxes, as well as 
by outright local budget cuts. 
 
The California tax revolt did not end with Proposition 13.  Seventeen months later, in November 
1979, voters passed the Proposition 4, known as the Gann Amendment.  Proposition 4 imposed 
a limit on most state and local government expenditures from tax sources.  The limit is calculated 
annually according to a formula based on population and the cost of living.  Under Proposition 4, 
excess revenues must be returned to the taxpayers.   
 
Both Propositions 13 and 4 have been modified in the years since their passage.  While weakened 
by the changes, Propositions 13 and 4 remain constraints on California state and local budgeting, 
and continue to be focal points in the public policy debate about California taxing and spending. 
 
 

Summary of Proposition 4 and Related Voter Initiatives 
 
Modern spending limits in California began in 1979 with the passage of Proposition 4 (Article XIII 
B of the California Constitution).  Also called the Gann Initiative after its chief sponsor, Paul Gann, 
Proposition 4 places an appropriations limit on most spending from tax proceeds.  The limit for 
each year is equal to the prior year's spending with upward adjustments allowed for changes in 
population and the cost of living.  Most state and local government appropriations are subject to 
the limit.  However, the law exempts certain appropriations from the limit including capital outlay, 
debt service and local government subventions.  When the limit is exceeded, Proposition 4 
requires the surplus to be returned to the taxpayers within two years.  Appropriations in the two 
year period can be averaged before becoming subject to the excess revenue provisions of the 
Gann limit.  
 
Voters approved the Gann limit in a November 1979 special election by a 74% margin.  The late 
1970s were a time of surplus state revenues in California, and voter exasperation at the inability 
of the legislature and the governor to agree on a plan to return the surplus to the taxpayers in the 
form of refunds or property tax relief helped fuel the tax revolt that led first to Proposition 13 and 
then to Proposition 4.  With the Gann limit, voters took the matter of spending limits into their own 
hands, and ignored objections that spending limit formulas are an artificial constraint on policy 
making and hamper the government's ability to address citizen needs.  
 
During the early 1980s, increases in population and the consumer price index outpaced the 
growth in state revenue, and the Gann limit was not reached.  However, a surge in state revenues 
in 1987 caused the limit to be breached, and led to the first refund to taxpayers. 
 
Voters have modified the Gann limit in a series of initiative measures.  Proposition 99 (1988) and 
Proposition 10 (1998) exempted new tobacco taxes from the Gann limit.  Proposition 98 (1988) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 83 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 5 of 18 

required public schools to receive a share of revenues exceeding the Gann limit.  That share was 
changed to a flat 50% by Proposition 111 (1990).  Proposition 111 also added three exemptions 
to the Gann limit: capital outlay spending, appropriations supported by increased gas taxes, and 
appropriations resulting from national disasters.  Most significantly, Proposition 111 changed the 
formula used for calculating annual adjustments to the Gann limit.  Under Proposition 111, the 
population factor is based on a weighted average of population and K-14 school enrollment 
growth (instead of population only), and the cost of living factor is based solely on California per-
capita personal income growth (and no longer takes into account the Consumer Price Index). 
 
The changes to the Gann limit formula under Proposition 111 substantially raised the Gann limit, 
making it less likely that the limit will be reached in the future.  Many observers believe that in its 
current weakened state the Gann limit has ceased to be a meaningful constraint on state 
spending. 
 
 

How the Appropriations Limit Works 
 
Which Revenues Are Subject to Limit?  
 
Article XIII B places a limit on appropriations from most, but not all, government revenue sources.  
The limit applies to appropriations from proceeds of taxes from both the general fund and special 
funds of government entities.  Proceeds of taxes include tax revenues, interest earnings on 
invested tax revenues, and any revenues collected by a regulatory license fee or user charge in 
excess of the amount needed to cover the cost of providing the regulation, product, or service.   
 
Which Appropriations Are Subject to Limit?  
 
Appropriations for almost all government functions are subject to limitation under Article XIII B.  
However, there are some important exceptions.  The original Proposition 4 provided that the 
following appropriations are not limited, even if made from proceeds of taxes:  

 Subventions from the state to local governments and schools, the use of which is 
unrestricted (these subventions are not subject to the state's limit, but instead are counted 
as subject to the local entity's limit);  

 Appropriations to pay for costs of complying with federal laws and court mandates;  

 Payments for interest and redemption charges on pre-existing (i.e., pre-Proposition 4) or 
voter-approved bonded indebtedness;  

 Withdrawals from previously appropriated reserve funds; and  

 Refunds of taxes.  
 
Proposition 111 excluded capital outlay from the appropriations limit.  This change reflects the 
fact that while capital outlay appropriations are made during a single budget year, they reflect 
long-term investments that are utilized over a number of years.  Appropriations directly related to 
an emergency, such as a fire, earthquake, or other natural disaster, were also excluded from the 
limit by Proposition 111.  No reduction in future limits is required for appropriations made for these 
emergency purposes.  
 
The "Base Year" Limit.  
 
The first year that limits were in effect was FY 1980-81.  The base year for determining the 
appropriations limit in FY 1980-81 was FY 1978-79.  Actual appropriations in the FY 1978-79 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 84 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 6 of 18 

fiscal year that had been financed by the proceeds of taxes were the starting point.  Appropriations 
not subject to limitation were subtracted from that figure and this became the "base year" level of 
appropriations for computing all subsequent years' limits.  Proposition 111 updated the base year 
for calculating the limit for each government entity to FY 1986-87.  For fiscal years beginning with 
FY 1990-91, the limit for each entity is the FY 1986-87 limit adjusted annually as specified by 
Article XIII B as amended by Proposition 111.  
 
Annual Adjustments to the Limit.  
 
The appropriations limit for each year since FY 1980-81 is calculated by adjusting the base year 
limit for changes in the cost-of-living and population.  Proposition 111, passed by the voters in 
June 1990, and revised each of the adjustment factors.  Specifically, annual adjustments to limits, 
either upward or downward, are made as follows:  

 Cost-of-Living.   
o State and schools are adjusted by the change in California per capita personal 

income.   
o Local agencies are adjusted by the change in California per capita personal 

income or the change in the local property tax roll due to the addition of new 
nonresidential construction.  

 Population.   
o The State uses a population factor calculated by adding: (a) the change in the 

state's total population weighted by the percent of the budget spent on non-
educational programs, and (b) the change in average daily attendance (ADA) for 
K-14 education weighted by the percentage of the budget spent on K-14 education.  

o Local agencies use a population factor that is the percentage change in the 
jurisdiction or in the county in which the jurisdiction is located.  Special districts 
located in two or more counties may use the change in the county in which the 
district has the highest assessed valuation.  

o Counties. The population change for counties can be calculated by using one of 
three methods: (a) the percentage change in population within the county; (b) the 
percentage change in population for both the county itself and contiguous counties; 
or (c) the percentage change in population within the incorporated portion of the 
county.   

o K-14 Schools use the change in population is the percentage change in average 
daily attendance.  

 Program Transfers.  Limits of governmental entities are modified to reflect transfers of 
financial responsibility from one level of government to another.  The limit of the new 
service provider is increased by the amount the former service provider's limit is reduced.   

 Funding Transfers.  Adjustments either upward or downward are made to account for 
transfers of program funding sources, for example from tax revenues (subject to limit) to 
fees (not subject to limit).  

 
The level of appropriations actually made by a government entity in any year does not have any 
bearing on the calculation of the appropriations limit for the subsequent years.  Each year's limit 
is computed based on the prior year's limit, not the prior year's appropriations.  
 
If the governing body actually appropriates less money than what would be permitted by the limit, 
it has "room" under its limit, and the limit will be further adjusted the following year for cost-of-
living and population changes.  A government entity does not "lose" room under its limit for the 
future by appropriating less than the maximum permitted in any year.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 85 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 7 of 18 

Appropriations Permitted in Excess of the Limit.  
 
Article XIII B sets forth two circumstances under which governments may make appropriations in 
excess of their limits:  

 Emergency.  Appropriations for declared emergencies do not count towards and may be 
made in excess of the limit.  Proposition 111 removed the requirement that the limits for 
future years must be reduced over a three-year period so that there would be no total 
increase in allowable appropriations.  

 Voter Approval.  Article XIII B permits voters of a jurisdiction to authorize an increase in 
the appropriations limit.  However, no voter-approved increase may be in effect for more 
than four years.  At the end of the four-year period, either the voters must approve another 
increase or the limit must return to the level it would otherwise have been.  

 
When Revenues Exceed the Appropriations Limit.  
 
A government entity may receive revenues during a fiscal year that exceed its appropriations limit.  
Proposition 111 allows governments to average appropriations over a two year period before 
becoming subject to the excess revenue provisions of Article XIII B.  In other words, a government 
entity can offset appropriations that exceeds its appropriations limit in one year of a two-year 
period by appropriating less than the limit in the other year.  If, after taking this two year averaging 
into account, authority to appropriate is not provided by either an emergency declaration or voter 
approval, Article XIII B as amended by Propositions 98 and 111 sets forth a process for disposing 
of the excess State revenues:  

 Education Programs. After the two-year averaging period, 50% of any excess revenues 
are transferred to the State School Fund for elementary, secondary and community 
college education.  A portion of this excess revenue (25%) may effectively be built into the 
base used to calculate future funding required by Proposition 98 if the excess funds are 
used for a specified purpose.  The transfer to education is not required if the state's 
average expenditure per student and average class size is equal to or exceeds that of the 
ten states with the best performance in these areas.  

 Return of Excess. The 50% of excess revenues remaining after the transfer to education 
must be returned to taxpayers within the following two years.  The return can be made 
through a reduction in the tax rate or as a fee reduction. 

 
Sources: 

 “Government Appropriations Limit: Article XIII B of the Constitution.”  In: Revenue and 
Taxation Reference Book 2003. Sacramento: Assembly Revenue and Taxation 
Committee, Chapter 5, January 2004, pp. 150-7. 

 “Tax and Expenditure Limitation in California: Proposition 13 & Proposition 4”, Institute of 
Governmental Studies, University of California at Berkeley 
(http://www.igs.berkeley.edu/library/htTaxSpendLimits2003.html) 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 86 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 8 of 18 

Calculation of Appropriation Limitation 
 
 

Appropriation Limit Calculation – Part I 
 

Greater of California per capita income or 
increase in non-residential assessed valuation   
of new construction  1.0369 
 
Population percentage change factor x 1.0143 
 
Ratio of change  1.0517 
 
 

Appropriation Limit Calculation – Part II 
 
Ratio of change  1.0517 
 
Prior year appropriation limit (2016-17) x $70,350,762 
 
Current year appropriation (2017-18)  $73,987,896 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 87 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 9 of 18 

Computation of Appropriation Limitation 
 
 

Adjustment Factors 
 
Cost of Living Price Factor:  The computation of the appropriation limitation involves the greater 
of the two cost of living factors: 
 

Percentage change in  
per capita income1 

 Percentage change in local 
assessment roll due to addition of 
non-residential new construction2 

 or  

3.69%  1.98% 
 
Population:  The computation of the appropriation limitation involves the greater of the following 
factors for each county: 
 

Growth within  
San Bernardino County3 

 Growth within the  
City of Yucaipa 

 or  

1.16%  1.02% 
   

Growth within  
Riverside County4 

 Growth within the  
City of Calimesa 

  or  

1.56%  3.09% 
 
The underlined factors above were used in calculating the District's appropriation limit for the fiscal 
year 2017-18.  The resolution adopted by the Board of Directors will specify these factors. 

                                            
1 State of California, Department of Finance correspondence dated May 2017 (Attachment A) 
2 Ms. Linda Santillano, Auditor-Controller Office, Property Tax Section, July 2016 (909) 382-3189 
3 State of California, Department of Finance correspondence dated May 2017 (Attachment B-SB) 
4 State of California, Department of Finance correspondence dated May 2017 (Attachment B-RIV) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 88 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 10 of 18 

Procedure for Administering  
Revenue and Taxation Code Section 2228(a)  

 
 
The Revenue and Taxation Code, Section 2228(a) requires the following: 
 
If a special district is located within a single county or within more than one city or any combination 
of cities and incorporated area within a single county, the annual percentage change in population 
for the district shall be that established for the county or the weighted average of the percentage 
change of each city and the unincorporated area. 
 
If a special district is located within more than one county, the annual percentage change in 
population for the district shall be the weighted average of the percentage change of each county 
or city or unincorporated area within the district or any combination provided that the areas 
selected are mutually exclusive. 
 
The State of California, Department of Finance has specified that the weights applied shall be the 
relative share of the assessed valuation (A.V.) of the district in each local agency. 
 
Population Percentage Change Factor: 
 

 
 

Local Agency 

Percentage 
Population 

Change 

 
 
 

 
Assessed 
Valuation 

 
 

= 

 
Percentage 

Change x A.V. 
      

San Bernardino County 1.16% x 6,064,541,815 = 70,348,685 
      

Riverside County 3.09% x 1,005,468,817 = 31,068,986 
   _________________  _________________ 

Total District   7,070,010,632  101,417,671 
 
 
Weighted Average Percent Change: 
 

Total District (Percentage Change x A.V.) 
= 

101,417,671 
= 0.014345 

Total District Assessed Valuation 7,070,010,632 
 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 89 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 11 of 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 90 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 12 of 18 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 91 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 13 of 18 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 92 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 14 of 18 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 93 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 15 of 18 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 94 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 16 of 18 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 95 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 17 of 18 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 96 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-075  Page 18 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 97 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-076 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor 
Erin Anton, Administrative Clerk IV 

Subject: Review of Bad Debt Summary for Calendar Year 2015 

 
The District actively pursues delinquent accounts, and in most cases is able to collect delinquent 
fees through a combination of shutting off the services provided, sending accounts to a collection 
agency, placing a lien on the property involved, and/or pursuing the claims through legal actions 
such as small claims court.  In some cases, the District is unable to collect the money owed the 
District.   
 
During the calendar year 2015, the amount of bad debt totals $27,288.24, which includes 
$11,791.89 for sewer only customers and $15,496.35 for water/sewer customers.  Of this bad 
debt total $3,948.71 is due to home foreclosures, leaving account balances of $23,339.53 that 
was not collected in the normal 
collection process. 
 
As a proper accounting procedure, 
this bad debt must be accounted 
for on our financial statements; 
otherwise the debt remains as a 
liability on the District’s annual 
audit.   
 
District staff has compiled the list of 
uncollectible accounts for calendar 
year 2015, which amounts to 
$27,288.24.  Of this total, only 
14.5% of the bad debts are due to 
home foreclosures. 
 
Overall, the total amount of bad 
debt represents a loss of 0.143% 
for calendar year 2015 based on 
total water and sewer revenues. 
 
 

0
.1

9
0
%

0
.1

2
0
%

0
.0

5
5
%

0
.0

5
3
%

0
.0

3
4
%

0
.0

4
7
%

0
.0

4
9
% 0
.0

7
3
%

0
.0

6
5
%

0
.1

2
0
%

0
.2

7
0
%

0
.2

4
0
%

0
.2

3
0
%

0
.2

3
0
%

0
.1

6
0
%

0
.1

4
0
%

0
.1

3
3
%

0
.1

4
3
%

0.000%

0.050%

0.100%

0.150%

0.200%

0.250%

0.300%

1
9
9
8

1
9
9
9

2
0
0
0

2
0
0
1

2
0
0
2

2
0
0
3

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
5

Bad Debt as a Percentage of 
Annual Water and Sewer Revenues

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 98 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-077 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Overview of the Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year 
2018 

 
On Monday, May 22, 2017, the Yucaipa Valley Water District conducted a budget workshop to 
review the proposed operating budget for next year.  During the budget workshop, the District 
staff provided a detailed overview of each individual line item for the water, sewer, and recycled 
water enterprise funds of the District.  Based on the discussion at the board workshop, the District 
staff made changes to the budget as summarized on the attached documentation. 
 

Budget Overview 
 
The Fiscal Year 2018 operating budget totals $26,853,536 (excluding capital improvement 
projects) distinguished by the following three enterprise funds. 

 
 
The departmental expenses for each of the enterprise funds are provided below: 
 

Water Division, 
$13,924,171, 

52%

Sewer Division, 
$12,132,940, 

45%
Recycled Water 

Division, 
$796,425, 3%

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 99 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-077  Page 2 of 4 

 

 

$4,799,752, 34%

$3,686,118, 26%

$3,142,636, 23%

$2,295,665, 17%

$0, 0%

Water Division Expenditures

Water Resources Administration Public Works Long-Term Debt Asset Acquisition

$
4
,7

9
9
,7

5
2

$
3
,6

8
6
,1

1
8

$
3
,1

4
2
,6

3
6

$
2
,2

9
5
,6

6
5

$
0

Water Resources Administration Public Works Long-Term Debt Asset Acquisition

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 100 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-077  Page 3 of 4 

 

 

$3,897,281, 32%

$3,561,784, 29%

$3,376,153, 28%

$1,297,722, 11%
$0, 0%

Sewer Division Expenditures

Long-Term Debt Treatment Administration Environmental Control Asset Acquisition

$
3
,8

9
7
,2

8
1

$
3
,5

6
1
,7

8
4

$
3
,3

7
6
,1

5
3

$
1
,2

9
7
,7

2
2

$
0

Long-Term Debt Treatment Administration Environmental Control Asset Acquisition

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 101 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-077  Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

$455,275, 57%

$308,150, 39%

$33,000, 4% $0, 0%

Recycled Water Division Expenditures

Labor and Benefits Operational Expenses Reserves & Infrastructure Replacement Asset Acquisition

$
4
5
5
,2

7
5

$
3
0
8
,1

5
0

$
3
3
,0

0
0

$
0

Labor and Benefits Operational Expenses Reserves & Infrastructure Replacement Asset Acquisition

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 102 of 138



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-078 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Kathryn Hallberg, Management Analyst 

Subject: Review of Proposed Insurance Policy for Fiscal Year 2018 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District currently has a property/liability insurance policy with Inland 
Counties Insurance Services Brokerage with insurance coverage provided by Water Plus 
Insurance Program and Allied World Assurance Coverage.  
 
The District staff has investigated pooled insurance options this year, but the cost is significantly 
greater with less coverage than our existing policy.  Therefore, while the District staff explored 
different insurance options, the attached policy renewal provides the most comprehensive and 
cost effective coverage for the District. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 103 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 2 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 104 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 3 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 105 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 4 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 106 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 5 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 107 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 6 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 108 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 7 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 109 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 8 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 110 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 9 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 111 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 10 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 112 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 11 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 113 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 12 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 114 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 13 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 115 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 14 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 116 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 15 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 117 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 16 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 118 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 17 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 119 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 18 of 19 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 120 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-078  Page 19 of 19 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 121 of 138



 

 

 

Workshop Memorandum 17-079 

Date: May 30, 2017 

From: Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 

Subject: Review of a Proposal for the 2016-2017 Habitat Monitoring Program Activities, 
Groundwater and Surface Water Data Assistance, and Annual Report 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District began discharging to San Timoteo Creek in 1986 and currently 
discharges tertiary treated recycled water to the stream system.  The riparian vegetation along 
San Timoteo Creek has been partially supported by the discharge of highly treated recycled water. 
 
In order to maximize the reuse of recycled water, the District was granted a “change of point of 
discharge” agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board permitting the reduction of 
the discharge from San Timoteo Creek with definitive mitigation measures.  Gradual reductions 
of the discharge along with an adaptive management plan are required to ensure the vegetation 
is not negatively impacted due to the reduction of recycled water flow.  The table below represents 
the minimum 7-day average discharge reductions over five years allowable under the WW-26 
permit. 
 

12-Month Period Following the 
Month Order was Approved 

Minimum 7-Day Average 
Discharge for the 12-Month Period 

First 1.9 mgd (2.9 cfs) 

Second 1.0 mgd (1.6 cfs) 

Third 0.5 mgd (0.8 cfs) 

Fourth 0.2 mgd (0.3 cfs) 

Fifth 0.1 mgd (0.2 cfs) 

 
In accordance with the results of a water use report prepared by SWCA Environmental 
Consultants in 2005, the District could reduce the discharge to maintain the existing habitat in 
San Timoteo Creek.  In order to validate the reduction in flow, an annual habitat monitoring 
program has been in place and reports are prepared each year to determine the results of the 
reduction in creek discharges.  The District is currently in its fourth year of reporting the habitat 
monitoring program activities. 
 
The Habitat Monitoring Program for San Timoteo Creek defines the adaptive management plan 
for San Timoteo Creek.  Components of the monitoring plan consist of vegetation analysis, aerial 
photo and groundwater monitoring.  Costs associated with the Habitat Monitoring program are 
listed below. 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 122 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-079  Page 2 of 7 

 

 

Task No. Task Description Cost Estimate 

1 Spring Qualitative Monitoring $2,090 

2 Fall Vegetation Monitoring $10,010 

3 Estimating Annual Riparian Density $5,240 

4 Monitoring Monthly Riparian Productivity $8,670 

5 Groundwater and Surface Water Data 
Compilation and Analysis 

$4,500 

6 HMP Annual Report $19,300 

 Total $49,810 
   

Optional Task  - Preliminary Watershed Budget Analysis $9,810 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 123 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-079  Page 3 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 124 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-079  Page 4 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 125 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-079  Page 5 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 126 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-079  Page 6 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 127 of 138



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-079  Page 7 of 7 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 128 of 138



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 129 of 138



 

 

Adjournment 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 130 of 138



January 2016 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

62 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,397,500 
 Sewer Division - $11,820,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $537,250 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750 
 
Number of Services: 12,434 water connections serving 17,179 units 

13,559 sewer connections serving 20,519 units 
64 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
 0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 131 of 138



January 2016 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 132 of 138



January 2016 
 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 133 of 138



January 2016 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 134 of 138



January 2016 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 135 of 138



January 2016 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 136 of 138



January 2016 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 137 of 138



January 2016 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 30, 2017 - Page 138 of 138


